
Janice C. Varela 

Vice-Chair-District 2 

Harold M Garcia 

Chair-District 1 

Max O Trujillo 

Commissioner- District 3 

Martin Sena 

Commissioner-District 4 

Kenneth C. Medina 

Commissioner- District 5 

Joy Ansley 

County Manager 

est National Aven

AGENDA 
San Miguel County Planning & Zoning Commission 

Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 
Thursday, April 6, 2023

2:00 p.m. 
San Miguel County Administration Building

500 West National Ave., Las Vegas, NM 87701 

1. Call to Order

3.

Approval of Agenda

4. Approval of Minutes from March 15, 2022

5.

Public Hearing:
CU-0266- Temporary Conditional Use Permit
Fisher Sand & Gravel-New Mexico, INC

 Enter Public Hearing

 Application Presented by: Amanda Salas, Planning & Zoning Director

 Applicant: Fisher Sand & Gravel-New Mexico, INC

 Purpose of Public Hearing:  Establish a temporary Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Plant
for NMDOT Project No. 4101370 for I-25 between Mile Post 305 and 309

 Public Comment on Application including Comments from Applicant/Property Owner
 Exit Public Hearing

6.

Approval/Disapproval of Application CU-0266 for Temporary 
Conditional Use Permit Fisher Sand & Gravel-New Mexico, INC
(Discussion/Action)

7.

Roll Call

8. Possibility of upcoming applications
(Discussion Only)

 Topics- Solar Fields, Community Solar, Recreational businesses, Rebuilds

9. Next Possible Regular Meeting Date:  Thursday, June 1, 2023
(Action/Discussion)

10. Adjournment

2.

Election of Officers- Chair and Vice-Chair



Janice C. Varela 

Vice-Chair-District 2

Planning & Zoning Division 
Amanda C. Salas, Director 

Harold M Garcia 

Chair-District 1 

Max O Trujillo 

Commissioner- District 3 

Martin Sena 

Commissioner-District 4 

Kenneth C. Medina 

Commissioner- District 5 

Joy Ansley 

County Manager 

        Administration Complex 
500 West National Avenue, Suite 201    Las Vegas, New Mexico  87701   (505) 425-9333 phone   (505) 425-7019 fax 

San Miguel County Planning & Zoning Commission/Board of Adjustment 

Public Hearing & Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, March 15, 2022 

2:00 p.m. 

San Miguel County Courthouse 

500 West National Ave., Las Vegas, NM 87701 

The San Miguel County Planning & Zoning Commissioners held a Public Hearing & Regular Meeting on 

Tuesday March 15, 2022. The meeting convened at the San Miguel Administrative Complex located at 

500 West National Avenue, Suite 200 Las Vegas New Mexico 87701  

1. Call to Order And Roll Call

San Miguel County Planning and Zoning Chairman Kenny Lujan called the Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

Upon Roll Call Chairman Kenny Lujan-present, Vice-Chair Sean Medrano-present, Commissioner Eva 

Artschwager-present, Commissioner Macario Gonzales-absent, Commissioner Phillip Warfield-present. 

A quorum was duly established. 

2. Approval of Agenda

Motion made by Commissioner Phillip Warfield to approve the Agenda, Second by Commissioner Sean 

Medrano. Motion Carried. 

3. Approval of Minutes for September 30, 2021

Motion made by Commissioner Sean Medrano to approve the minutes for September 30, 2022, Second 

by Commissioner Phillip Warfield. Motion Carried. 

4. Public Hearing was CU-0265-Conditional Use Permit Kiddie Kampus Korner DayKare Center

Entered into Public hearing at 2:03 p.m.  



San Miguel County Planning & Zoning Director Amanda Salas presented to the Commission the 

application submitted by the applicants Greg Martinez & Rosalie Martinez. The purpose of the Public 

Hearing is to establish a daycare learning center on a parcel of land located N. of Las Vegas, at the 

corner of Harlan Road and NM Hwy 518.  

San Miguel County Planning & Zoning Director Amanda Salas went over the Utilities within proximity of 

the site, General Plan Conformance, Specific Use Limitations Applicable. She mentioned that public 

notices were sent out to anyone within 100 feet of the property line and any others that may be 

affected. Ms. Salas also went over all the Agency & Contacts that were notified about the application 

submitted by Greg Martinez & Rosalie Martinez to establish a daycare. 

Public Comment 

Four individuals spoke for public hearing 

Rosalie Martinez informed the Commission that she is the owner of the daycare. She has been opened 

to the public since April 2016. She stated that approximately 55-60 children ages infant to 12 years old 

attend the daycare. Once the daycare is built approximately 110 kids would be able to attend the day 

care. The daycare is open Monday through Friday from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  

Carlos Martinez informed the Commission that the daycare is federally and state funded. Mr. Martinez 

mentioned that the construction is privately funded. Mr. Martinez mentioned that the daycare is being 

built to help the community with any daycare needs they may have.  

Greg Martinez informed the Commission upon approval of the application, the construction of the 

building will begin as soon as possible.  

Jeff Salmon informed the commission with his concern about the traffic off NM Hwy 518. 

Commissioner Kenny Lujan mentioned that the New Mexico Department of Transportation would go 

out to the site to do a traffic study. Mr. Salmon also was concerned about any street lights and any 

signs that may be bright and disturbing at night. Mr. Salmon asked if the lights could be turned off at a 

certain time. Mr. Greg Martinez mentioned that the lights would be downward lighting and the sign 

will not have any lights on it.  

San Miguel County Attorney Dave Romero asked the Commission if they could make a motion to make 

the Survey Report Exhibit A & any pre-documents as Exhibit B. 



Motion made by Commissioner Phillip Warfield to make the Survey Report as Exhibit A, Second by 

Commissioner Sean Medrano. Motion Carried. 

Motion made by Commissioner Phillip Warfield to make the application and any pre-documents as 

Exhibit B, Second by Commissioner Sean Medrano. Motion Carried.   

5. Approval /Disapproval of Application CU-0265 for Kiddie Kampus Korner Daykare Center by

Planning & Zoning Commission

Motion made by  Commissioner Sean Medrano to approve Application CU-0265 for Kiddie Kampus 

Korner Daykare Center, Second by Commissioner Phillip Warfield. Motion Carried.  

Motion made to exit public hearing at 3:00 p.m. 

6. Rules, Procedures and Role of the Planning & Zoning Commission

San Miguel County Attorney Dave Romero discussed the rules, Procedures and Role the Planning & 

Zoning Commission has. Mr. Romero stated that the commission must not speak to anyone outside of 

the meeting about anything. Mr. Romero also mentioned that the Commissioners should listen to all 

the evidence before making any final decisions. Mr. Romero recommended that anyone that is 

speaking in the meeting should go up to the podium so the record is there.  

7. Possibility of upcoming applications

San Miguel County Planning and Zoning Director Amanda Salas spoke about all applications. The 

guidelines to apply must go through the County. All applicants must follow the San Miguel Ordinance 

which is based off the State Statue. San Miguel County Planning & Zoning Director Amanda Salas also 

informed the Commission on Solar Fields, Community Solar, Subdivisions, and Recreational Businesses. 

8. Next Meeting Date

San Miguel County Planning and Zoning Director Amanda Salas informed the commission that Regular 

meeting should be held every three months. If a Special Meeting needs to be held the Commission will 

be informed. Chairman Kenny Lujan asked if Amanda could send out an email with the day and time of 

any upcoming meetings. 



Adjournment 

Motion made by Commissioner Phillip Warfield to adjourn meeting at 3:57 P.M., Second by 

Commissioner Sean Medrano. Motion Carried.   

Chairman Kenny Lujan 



Page | 1 

TYPE OF APPLICATION:  Temporary Conditional Use Permit- Temporary Hot Mix Asphalt Plant 

File Number : CU-0266         Resolution : 04062023-P&Z 

Petitioners/Applicants 

Fisher Sand & Gravel-New Mexico, INC 

30A Frontage Road East/P.O Box 2340 

Placitas, NM 87043 

Current Property Owners 

Agnes CdeBaca/Paul CdeBaca-Agua Bendita 

Corp. 

Off of County Road B35A – Rencona Area 

Name of Contractor 

Fisher Sand & Gravel-New Mexico, INC 

30A Frontage Road East/P.O Box 2340 

Placitas, NM 87043 

Currently has a business license with San Miguel 

County (SMC) to operate  

Intended Land Use Seeking Conditional Use Permit for Temporary 

Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA) Plant for NMDOT Road 

Way and Bridge Restoration Project No. 4101370 

I-25 between Mile Post 305.00 to 309.00 

 Cost of Project is $15,150,000.00

Currently has Conditional Use Permit for Agua 

Bendita Gravel Pit for Gravel Extraction – 1997 

Previous uses per property owner: 

 Used by Corn Construction – 1997

Condition Use Permit sought/approved

 La Farge/Corn Construction- 2000

 County Purchased Material- 2004 to 2006

 NMDOT used in 2005-2007

 Currently uses for gravel business in

Pecos, NM – CdeBaca Sand & Gravel, Inc

Number of Employees on Site Crusher – 6 employees 



Page | 2 

Hot Mix Asphalt Plant—4 employees Trucking – 

15 Drivers -subcontracted to company "Makin It 

Move Transport"

SITE INFORMATION 

Location: Off of County Road B35A – Rencona area 

 Coordinates: 35°18'56.70"N  105°38'39.67"W

 Located on the southern end of Hogback Hill ridgeline.

 Head North on County Road B35A toward State Rte 34 for

0.9 miles and turn right onto State Rte for about 11 miles to

get to Frontage Rd 2116.

Legal Summary S: 26 T: 13 R: 12 

384.570 acres  

Site of Acreage Used Three (3) acres being used of approximately a 385 acre parcel per 

applicant 

SMC Tax Parcel # 1-071-074-145-185 

Account# R0293715 

Current Land Use Agricultural 

Current Land Structures Grazing land 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING and CURRENT LAND USE 

North Unknown; likely state/federal land 

East 0400 Agricultural 

South 0400 Agricultural 

West County Road B35A, 0400 Agricultural and 0200 Non-Residential Land 

UTILITIES WITHIN PROXIMITY OF SITE/PUBLIC SAFETY 

Water Use  Crusher to use 8,000 gallons a day for 25 days – 200,000

gallons

 Roadways and HMA will use 8,000 gallons for 30 days –

240,000 gallons



Page | 3 

Plan is to get with City of Las Vegas Wastewater Treatment plant as 

they have been getting such water from them for another project north 

of Las Vegas. Will require permission from CLV Wastewater Tx Plant. 

Liquid Waste Disposal Portable toilets will be utilized; provided by Roybal’s Septic Service 

Gas Gas is not being utilized on site; both the crusher and the HMA plant 

have 10,000 gallon diesel tank per site map. 

Solid Waste AAF Hauling will bring in a dumpster for trash and dispose of. Will not 

be using a county landfill.  

Electricity Portable electric generators for electrical power 

Cable N/A 

Telephone N/A 

Internet N/A 

Public Safety Fire Protection: Rowe Fire Department, Police Protection: State 

Police, San Miguel County Sheriff Department 

Rowe Fire Station is approximately 12 miles from the location 

GENERAL PLAN CONFORMANCE 

Land Use Designation Rural Holding Zone – The purpose of this zone is to permit 

in appropriate areas a lower density of population than in 

residential agricultural zones and still maintain an 

environment supporting large farms and ranches. 

Intended Use Interpretation: Industrial - Temporary 

Proposed Land Use Designation Temporary lndustrial Use – Temporary Hot Mix Asphalt 

(HMA) Plant 

Conditional Use Permit Defined Implemented when use may have a special impact or 

uniqueness such that their effect on the surrounding 

environment cannot be determined in advance of the use 

being proposed for a particular location.  

Conditional Use Permit 

Implemented 

CONDITIONAL USE: As provided under San Miguel 

County Ordinance 86-2, Section 3620(P) and Section 5130- 

Asphalt Batching and Cement Plants, Permanent and 

Temporary 



Page | 4 

Landscaping:  No landscaping is proposed. 

Flood Plain Review Not in a floodplain per NFHL Viewer 

Steep Slope: N/A 

Erosion Hazard Area: N/A 

Drainage/Stormwater 

Runoff 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) is in place; United 

States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) requirements 

 NOI was provided to receive National Pollutant Discharge

Elimination System (NPDES) Permit coverage

 An NOI for a general permit is a notice to the NPDES

permitting authority of an Operator's intent to be covered under

a general permit, and typically contains basic information about

the Operator and the planned discharge for which coverage is

being requested.

Assets and 

Constraints: 

Property has been previously and currently being used for gravel 

extraction. 

Setback Requirement: 

A. 100 feet to the nearest road  

B. 60 feet to any perimeter property lines 

C. No less than 200 feet to an existing 

residential dwelling 

A. Approximately 800 feet to County Road 

B35A 

B. Plant will be 200 feet to the south, 750 

feet to the west, 4500 feet to the east 

and 6300 feet to the north. 

Street Access : Private roadway to County Road B35A 

Clearview of Intersecting Streets: Yes 

Proposed Building: N/A 



Page | 5 

Any Item Waived: None Section 5130, Paragraph G, provides for a performance bond or 

surety bond for the restoration of the site to an acceptable condition. 

The property is currently disturbed area as gravel extraction has 

occurred at the Agua Bendita Gravel Pit on the same parcel. The 

gravel pit was previously approved by a conditional use permit in 1997 

with San Miguel County Planning & Zoning Division. Continuous 

extraction will be used. Fisher Sand & Gravel does plan to place 

unusable sand and material back to the pit, contour existing terrain, 

including natural drainage. 

Grading: None required. 

Lot Width: 2700 feet 

Fire Vehicle Access: Determination will be made by San Miguel Fire Chief if needed. Fire 

plan also submitted by Fisher Sand and Gravel. 

Cultural, Historic or 

Archaeological: 

None known per Environmental Assessment done in 1996 when Corn 

Construction sought the development of the gravel pit along with the 

property owner.  

Public Notices 

APPLICATION FILING DATE Received 02-14-2023; Accepted 03-13-2023 

P&Z MEETING Thursday, April 6, 2023 

PUBLICATION NOTICE OF P&Z MEETING March 22, 2023, SMC Website 

March 24, 2023 Las Vegas Optic 

PUBLIC NOTICE MAILING LIST Completed with adjacent property owners 

PUBLIC NOTICE SIGN 5 Signs-Completed Thursday, March 23, 2023 - 

Sent for Review to the following departments and agencies for comment on March 22, 2023 

Agency & Contact(s) Response & Date Received 

SMC Planning & Zoning Division 

Amanda C. Salas, Planning & Zoning Director 

asalas@co.sanmiguel.nm.us 

3-30-23: Concerns - noise, road damage to 

county and state roads, traffic control;
If conditional use application is approved, a 

mailto:asalas@co.sanmiguel.nm.us


Page | 6 

temporary permit will also be required for a 

temporary construction yard. 

The location will be 83 NM 63 in Rowe for the 

sole purpose to have a portable office at the 

size of 8x20. Signs and bases, barrels, arrow 

boards, message boards, trash dumpsters and 

portable toilets. Heavy equipment will not be 

stored there. Noise and traffic will also have to 

be considered for this area. Noise and traffic is 

not going to be an issue as per applicant for 

this use. No concerns for the temporary permit 

at this time.  

Administrative Process for Planning & Zoning 

Director per Section 5470- Temporary Uses 

SMC Planning & Zoning Division 

Nanette Knox, Land Use Compliance 

Specialist 

nknox@co.sanmiguel.nm.us 

3-30-2023:None at this time; building is not 

occurring 

SMC Public Works Division 

Benito Romero, Public Works Director 

bromero@co.sanmiguel.nm.us 

3-30-2023: No issues or concerns at this time. 

SMC Fire Division 

Chief Andrew Duran, SMC Fire Chief 

aduran@co.sanmiguel.nm.us 

3-22-2023: Fire protection would be provided 

by Rowe Fire Station. 

Knowing the location, the site is adjacent to 

the county road. I do not see fire access to be 

an issue. I have reviewed their fire safety plan 

and have no concerns.   

NM Environment Department 

Kenny Santiestevan, Environmental Scientist 

Kenny.Santistevan@state.nm.us 

3-22-2023: I don't see any problems with this 

application as all the proper permits meet the 

Air Quality and NMDOT regulations. NMED is 

only concerned about meeting the setbacks 

from property lines and waterways. Based on 

the photos submitted, it can be determined that 

mailto:nknox@co.sanmiguel.nm.us
mailto:bromero@co.sanmiguel.nm.us
mailto:aduran@co.sanmiguel.nm.us


Page | 7 

the proper setbacks are met. 

City of Las Vegas Wastewater Division 

Maria Gilvarry, Utilities Director 

gilvarrym@lasvegasnm.gov 

3-28-23:At this time our comment is that we 

cannot guarantee water availability. Effluent 

may be made available.  At this time I cannot 

commit to its availability. The volume available 

will be based on the amount already committed 

and in accordance with our permit. (Pending) 

NM Department of Transportation 

Veronica Lovato-Lerma, District Traffic 

Engineer 

Veronicar.lovatoler@state.nm.us 

Gabriel Lucero, Assistant District Engineer 

Gabrielm.lucero@state.nm.us 

3-23-2023: Veronica Lerma- Fisher’s access 

point to the proposed plant is located of a 

county road, therefore does not require 

anything from my shop as far as permitting. 

We do expect them to have ‘Trucks Turning” 

signs on NM 34 as well as FR 2116. 

3-29-2023: Gabriel Lucero- I believe we have 

two main concerns. 

The first concern we have is the impact the 

heavy vehicles will have on the pavement of 

NM 34. We have had similar cases where the 

haul route suffers severe damage due to the 

additional traffic. 

The second concern we have is the increase 

in the volume of traffic, specifically the 

commercial traffic. NM 34 is a very narrow 

roadway and we have concerns with the 

commercial vehicles and passenger cars on 

the road. The portion of NM 34 as you climb to 

the top of the mesa is very narrow and lacks 

guardrail. 

Department of Cultural Affairs 

Historic Preservation Division 

3-27-2023: Bob Estes- Historic Preservation 

Specialist/Archaeology 

mailto:gilvarrym@lasvegasnm.gov
mailto:Veronicar.lovatoler@state.nm.us
mailto:Gabrielm.lucero@state.nm.us


Page | 8 

Geoff Cunnar, PhD RPA 

Staff Archaeologist  

Geoff.Cunnar@state.nm.us 

 My review shows that the project area

of potential effects has not been

surveyed to identify and evaluate

historic properties.  However, the

addition of hot mix plant to the quarry is

unlikely to affect any unidentified

historic properties.

 The State Historic Preservation Office

has no concerns and no additional

work is needed.

Dennis J. Esquibel 

San Miguel County/City of Las Vegas Office of 

Emergency Management 

desquibel@co.sanmiguel.nm.us 

3-31-2023: Does not have any Concerns 

Did received public comments via phone as 

well from two concerned residents: 3/30/23 
and 3/31/23

Concerns are: 

 Jake brakes being used down the hill

by semis

 The poor current condition of NM 34

 Concerns NM 34 will be left in worse

condition

 Fire concerns for the location

Additional Items: Fire Protection and Exhibit Plan 

Facility Layout Map- Air Quality Permit GCP2-2981R1 

Certificate of Liability Insurance 

Material Agreement with Property Owner 

Construction Permit Nm:GCP-3-Rev.1 for Hot Mix Plant 

SWPPP-EPA NOI (Notice of Intent) 

San Miguel County Business License- Fisher Industries 

Construction Permit No:GCP-2-Rev.3- Registration 3618 

Temporary Use Permit Application for Temp Construction Yard 

BLM Contract 

mailto:Geoff.Cunnar@state.nm.us
mailto:desquibel@co.sanmiguel.nm.us




AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

COUNTIES OF SAN MIGUEL and MORA,
STATE OF NEW MEXICO } ss.

Phil Scherer, Editor, being first duly sworn, on 
oath states that he is a Manager of the Las 
Vegas Optic, a semi-weekly newspaper of 
general paid and general circulation in San 
Miguel and Mora Counties, New Mexico, 
and that this newspaper is duly qualified to 
publish legal notices or advertisements with-
in the meaning of the provisions of Chapter 
167, session Laws of 1937, and that payment 
therefor has been made and assessed as 
court costs. That the notice of which a copy 
as published is hereto attached and hereby 
made a part hereof was published in said 
newspaper once each week for 1 consec-
utive insertion(s). That the first publication 
being on the 24th day of March, 2023 and 
the subsequent consecutive publications on 
the __n/a__ day(s) of ______, 20___.

NOTICE OF REGULAR 
MEETING AND PUBLIC 

HEARING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 
that the San Miguel County 
Planning & Zoning Commis-
sion, pursuant to the Open 

Meetings Act, Section 10-15-
1.1, NMSA 1978, will hold a 
regular meeting and public 

hearing on Thursday, April 6, 
2023 at 2:00 p.m. in the San 
Miguel County Commission 
Chambers, County Court-

house 2nd Floor, 500 W. Nat’l 
Ave., Suite 200, Las Vegas, 

NM, for the purpose of regular 
business and considering the 

application set forth hereunder. 
Any protests and objections 
may be made by interested 

persons.
APPLICATION: CU-0266– 
Temporary Hot Mix Asphalt 

Plant (HMA) for NMDOT 
Project #4101370 on NM HWY 

I-25 MP 305.0 to 309.0
APPLICANT: Fisher Sand & 
Gravel – New Mexico, Inc.

PLACE OF PROPOSED USE: 
Agua Bendita Gravel Pit site 
within a parcel of land com-
prised of 385 acres, more or 

less, off of County Road B35A 
and NM State Route 34, locat-
ed within San Miguel County 
near Rowe, projected Section 

26, Tract 13, Range 12.
ACTION REQUESTED OF 
THE PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMISSION: Conditional 
use approval to establish a 
Temporary Hot Mix Asphalt 

Plant.
Adjournment

Further details regarding this 
request may be examined at 
the aforementioned hearing 

or by contacting the Planning 
& Zoning Division, 500 West 
National Avenue, Suite 203, 
Las Vegas at 505-454-1074.
/s/ Ms. Joy Ansley, County 

Manager
/s/ Ms. Amanda Salas, Plan-

ning & Zoning Director
PUB: Las Vegas Optic, Mar 

24, 2023
#23030103

Price: $ 67.83.

Account Number: 33825.

Editor

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 
24th day of March, 2023.

Notary Public



tion site located at NM 
Hwy 121, Chacon, NM. 
The monopole tower is 
to be located at latitude 
36-08-14.55 N and lon-
gitude 105-22-12.48 
W. Interested persons 
may raise environmen-
tal concerns about the 
proposed structure by 
filing a Request for 
Environment Review 
with the Federal Com-
munications Commis-
sion (FCC). The FCC 
strongly encourages 
interested parties to 
file Requests for Envi-
ronmental Review on-
line, and instructions 
for making such filings 
can be found at http://
www.fcc.gov/asr/envi-
ronmentalrequest. The 
proposed communica-
tions site can be identi-
fied by FCC Form 854 
File Number A1240204 
and interested persons 
may review the applica-
tion by going to www.
fcc.gov/asr/applications 
and entering the FCC 
Form 854 File Number 
A1240204. The mailing 
address for interested 
parties that would pre-
fer to file a Request for 
Environmental Review 

by paper copy is as fol-
lows; FCC Request for 
Environmental Review, 
Attn: Ramon Williams, 
445 12th Street SW, 
Washington, DC 20554. 
PUB: Las Vegas Optic, 
Mar 24, 2023

#23030100

REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSALS

The City of Las Vegas, 
New Mexico will open 
Sealed Proposals at 
2:00 pm,  April 19, 2023, 
at the City Council 
Chambers, 1700 North 
Grand Avenue, Las Ve-
gas, New Mexico, or 
other designated area 
at the City Offices; ON 
THE FOLLOWING: 

PUMP, MOTOR, 
MECHANICAL AND 

ELECTRICAL 
SERVICES

Proposal Forms and 
Specifications may be 
obtained from the fol-
lowing location: City 
Clerk’s office at 1700 N 
GRAND AVE, LAS VE-
GAS, NM 87701
Mailed proposals should 
be addressed to the City 
Clerk, 1700 N. Grand 
Ave., Las Vegas, New 
Mexico 87701; with 
the envelope marked 
PUMP, MOTOR, ME-
CHANICAL AND ELEC-

TRICAL SERVICES 
Opening No. 2023-13 ; 
on the lower left-hand 
corner of the submitted 
envelope. It shall be the 
responsibility of the Of-
feror to see that their 
proposal is delivered 
to the City Clerk by the 
date and time set for the 
proposal request. If the 
mail or delivery of pro-
posal request is delayed 
beyond the opening 
date and time, proposal 
thus delayed will not be 
considered. Proposals 
will be reviewed at a 
later date with possible 
negotiations to follow. 
The City of Las Vegas 
reserves the right to re-
ject any/or all proposals 
submitted. 
CITY OF LAS VEGAS, 
/s/ Leo J. Maestas, City 
Manager
/s/ New Mexico Local 
Government Law 
/s/ Casandra Fresquez, 
City Clerk
/s/ Tasha Martinez, Fi-
nance Director
/s/ Helen Vigil, Purchas-
ing Officer
Opening No. 2023-13
Date Issued: 3/15/2023
PUB: Las Vegas Optic, 
Mar 24, 2023

#23030101

NOTICE OF A 

SPECIAL CITY 
COUNCIL MEETING

Notice is hereby given 
that the City Council of 
the City of Las Vegas, 
NM, will hold a  Special 
meeting on Tuesday, 
March 28, 2023 starting 
at 1:00 p.m. at the City 
of Las Vegas  Coun-
cil Chambers, 1700 N. 
Grand Ave.   Items to 
be discussed and con-
sidered:  Consideration 
of the City of Las Vegas 
and Las Vegas Police 
Officer’s Association
(LVPOA) Memoran-
dum of Understanding 
(MOU) regarding Sec-
tion 16 (Compensation) 
and Section 44 (Terms 
of Agreement) of LVPOA 
Agreement #3848-22.
The Council may con-
vene in Executive Ses-
sion if the subject mat-
ter of such discussion 
or action is exempt 
from the open meet-
ing requirement under 
Section 10-15-1 (H) of 
the Open Meetings Act.  
A copy of the agenda 
may be obtained from 
the City Clerk, 1700 N. 
Grand Avenue, during 
regular business hours. 
The Meeting is open to 
the public.  
City of Las Vegas
/s/ Casandra Fresquez

City Clerk
PUB: Las Vegas Optic, 
Mar 24, 2023

#23030102

NOTICE OF 
REGULAR MEETING 

AND PUBLIC 
HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY 
GIVEN that the San 
Miguel County Planning 
& Zoning Commission, 
pursuant to the Open 
Meetings Act, Section 
10-15-1.1, NMSA 1978, 
will hold a regular meet-
ing and public hearing 
on Thursday, April 6, 
2023 at 2:00 p.m. in 
the San Miguel County 
Commission Chambers, 
County Courthouse 2nd 
Floor, 500 W. Nat’l Ave., 
Suite 200, Las Vegas, 
NM, for the purpose of 
regular business and 
considering the applica-
tion set forth hereunder. 
Any protests and objec-
tions may be made by 
interested persons.
APPLICATION: CU-
0266– Temporary 
Hot Mix Asphalt Plant 
(HMA) for NMDOT Proj-
ect #4101370 on NM 
HWY I-25 MP 305.0 to 
309.0
APPLICANT: Fisher 
Sand & Gravel – New 
Mexico, Inc.

PLACE OF PRO-
POSED USE: Agua 
Bendita Gravel Pit site 
within a parcel of land 
comprised of 385 acres, 
more or less, off of 
County Road B35A and 
NM State Route 34, lo-
cated within San Miguel 
County near Rowe, pro-
jected Section 26, Tract 
13, Range 12. 
ACTION REQUESTED 
OF THE PLANNING 
& ZONING COMMIS-
SION: Conditional use 
approval to establish a 
Temporary Hot Mix As-
phalt Plant.
Adjournment
Further details regard-
ing this request may be 
examined at the afore-
mentioned hearing or by 
contacting the Planning 
& Zoning Division, 500 
West National Avenue, 
Suite 203, Las Vegas at 
505-454-1074. 
/s/ Ms. Joy Ansley, 
County Manager
/s/ Ms. Amanda Salas, 
Planning & Zoning Di-
rector
PUB: Las Vegas Optic, 
Mar 24, 2023

#23030103

NOTICE
THE ACEQUIA MADRE 
DE LOS ROMEROS 
WILL MEET ON SAT-

URDAY, APRIL 8, 2023 
AT 1:00 PM AT THE 
LAS VEGAS CITY 
SCHOOLS BOARD 
ROOM LOCATED AT 
901 DOUGLAS AVE, 
LAS VEGAS NM.
PUB: Las Vegas Optic, 
Mar 24, 31, Apr 7, 2023

#23030104

FOURTH JUDICIAL 
DISTRICT COURT 

COUNTY OF MORA 
STATE OF 

NEW MEXICO 
STATE OF NEW 
MEXICO ex rel., 

HUMAN SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

Petitioner 
vs. 

CLARENCE ABEYTA 
Respondent 

TATIANA VIGIL 
Co-Respondent 

Case D-
430-DM-02016-00032

NOTICE OF
PENDENCY OF

ACTION 
STATE OF NEW MEXI-
CO TO TATIANA VIGIL, 
GREETINGS: 
You are hereby noti-
fied that CLARENCE 
ABEYTA, the above-
named Respondent, 
has re-opened the civil 
action against you in 
the above-entitled court 
and cause, the general 

object thereof being to 
be awarded sole legal 
physical custody of the 
minor child of the par-
ties. Unless you enter 
your appearance in this 
cause within thirty (30) 
days of the date of the 
first publication of this 
Notice, judgment by de-
fault will be deemed en-
tered against you. The 
first date of publication 
is March 24, 2023. 
/s/ Suzanne Gaulin 
SUZANNE GAULIN 
Attorney for Respon-
dent 
717 4th Street 
Las Vegas, NM 87701 
Phone: 505-235-9556 
gaulinlawfirm@gmail.
com 
WITNESS the Honor-
able Michael Aragon, 
District Court Judge 
of the Fourth Judicial 
District Court of New 
Mexico, and the Seal of 
the District Court of San 
Miguel, this 22 day of 
March 2023. 
BRENDA J. MURPHY
CLERK OF THE DIS-
TRICT COURT 
/s/ Leonor Encinias
By Deputy
PUB: Las Vegas Optic, 
Mar 24, 31, Apr 7, 2023

#23030105

LEGALS (cont.)

March 24, 2023 | |Las Vegas OPTIC B5

MISCELLANEOUS:
Applying for Social Security Disability or 
Appealing a Denied Claim? Call Bill Gordon 
& Assoc., Social Security Disability Attorneys, 
1-855-380-6225! FREE Consultations. Local 
Attorneys Nationwide [Mail: 2420 N St NW, 
Washington DC. Office: Broward Co. FL (TX/
NM Bar.)]
Viasat Satellite Internet. Up to 12 Mbps Plans 
Starting at $30/month. Our Fastest Speeds (up 
to 50 Mbps) & Unlimited Data Plans Start at 
$100/month. Call Viasat today! 1-855-260-8627
Wesley Financial Group, LLC Timeshare 
Cancellation Experts Over $50,000,000 in 
timeshare debt and fees cancelled in 2019. Get 
free informational package and learn how to get 
rid of your timeshare! Free consultations. Over 
450 positive reviews. Call 866-925-1156
High-Speed Internet. We instantly compare 
speed, pricing, availability to find the best ser-
vice for your needs. Starting at $39.99/month! 
Quickly compare offers from top providers. Call 
1-877-737-6167
BATHROOM RENOVATIONS. EASY, ONE 
DAY updates! We specialize in safe bathing. 
Grab bars, no slip flooring & seated showers. 
Call for a free in-home consultation: 505-515-
0292
HughesNet Satellite Internet - 25mbps start-
ing at $49.99/mo! Get More Data FREE Off-
Peak Data. FAST download speeds. WiFi built 
in! FREE Standard Installation for lease custom-
ers! Limited Time, Call 1-855-800-2806
Cable Price Increase Again? Switch To 
DIRECTV & Save + get a $100 visa gift 
card! Get More Channels For Less Money. 
Restrictions apply. Call Now! 877-891-7176
BANKRUPTCY RELIEF! Help stop Creditor 
Harassment, Collection Calls, Repossession 
and Legal Actions! Speak to a Professional 
Attorney and Get the Help You NEED! Call 
NOW 833-954-0330
DIRECTV Stream - The Best of Live & 
On-Demand On All Your Favorite Screens. 
CHOICE Package, $84.99/mo for 12 months. 
Stream on 20 devices in your home at once. 
HBO Max included for 3 mos (w/CHOICE 
Package or higher.) No annual contract, no 
hidden fees! Some restrictions apply. Call IVS 
1-833-937-0271
Two great new offers from AT&T Wireless! 
Ask how to get the new iPhone 11 or Next 
Generation Samsung Galaxy S10e ON US 
with AT&T’s Buy one, Give One offer. While 
supplies last! CALL 1-888-989-2198

4G LTE Home Internet Now Available! Get 
GotW3 with lightning fast speeds plus take your 
service with you when you travel! As low as 
$109.99/mo! 855-407-7829
EXPIRES SOON: Switch to DISH + get a 2 
YEAR PRICE LOCK!! Plus get Free Premium 
Channels for 3 mos. Free Installation (up to 6 
rooms)! 844-937-3775
DIAGNOSED WITH LUNG CANCER? You 
may qualify for a substantial cash award - even 
with smoking history. NO obligation! We’ve 
recovered millions. Let us help!!! Call 24/7, 866-
411-0726
Don’t let the stairs limit your mobil-
ity! Discover the ideal solution for anyone who 
struggles on the stairs, is concerned about a fall 
or wants to regain access to their entire home. 
Call AmeriGlide today! 1-844-366-9951
Put on your TV Ears and hear TV with 
unmatched clarity. TV Ears Original were 
originally $129.95 - NOW WITH THIS 
SPECIAL OFFER are only $59.95 with code 
MCB59! Call 1-888-549-0182
LONG DISTANCE MOVING: Call today for a 
FREE QUOTE from America’s Most Trusted 
Interstate Movers. Let us take the stress out of 
moving! Speak to a Relocation Specialist, call 
877-621-0331
DONATE YOUR CAR FOR KIDS! Fast Free 
Pickup – Running or Not – 24 Hour Response 
– Maximum Tax Donation – Help Find Missing 
Children. Call Now 877-925-0934
Great new offer from AT&T Wireless! Ask 
how to get the new iPhone 12 mini for as low 
as $0 with trade in. While supplies last! CALL 
1-866-516-0099
DONATE YOUR CAR OR TRUCK TO 
HERITAGE FOR THE BLIND. Free 3 Day 
Vacation, Tax Deductible, Free Towing, All 
Paperwork Taken Care Of. CALL 1-877-613-
0103
Become a Published Author. We want to Read 
Your Book! Dorrance Publishing-Trusted by 
Authors Since 1920. Book manuscript submis-
sions currently being reviewed. Comprehensive 
Services: Consultation, Production, Promotion 
and Distribution. Call for Your Free Author`s 
Guide 1-833-549-7564 or visit dorranceinfo.
com/nmpa
DIRECTV for $79.99/mo for 12 months with 
CHOICE Package. Watch your favorite live 
sports, news & entertainment anywhere. First 3 
months of HBO Max, Cinemax, Showtime, Starz 
and Epix included! Directv is #1 in Customer 
Satisfaction (JD Power & Assoc.) Some restric-
tions apply. Call 1-888-758-5998

BATH & SHOWER UPDATES in as little as 
ONE DAY! Affordable prices - No payments 
for 18 months! Lifetime warranty & professional 
installs. Senior & Military Discounts available. 
Call: 877-378-3613

Don’t Pay For Covered Home Repairs 
Again! American Residential Warranty covers 
ALL MAJOR SYSTEMS AND APPLIANCES. 
30 DAY RISK FREE/ $100 OFF POPULAR 
PLANS. 833-660-1335

LONG DISTANCE MOVING: Call today for a 
FREE QUOTE from America’s Most Trusted 
Interstate Movers. Let us take the stress out of 
moving! Speak to a Relocation Specialist, call 
877-621-033

Caring for an aging loved one? Wondering 
about options like senior-living communities and 
in-home care? Caring.com’s Family Advisors 
are here to help take the guesswork out of 
senior care for you and your family. Call for 
your FREE, no-obligation consultation: 1-888-
694-7553

FREE high speed internet for those that 
qualify. Government program for recipients of 
select programs incl. Medicaid, SNAP, Housing 
Assistance, WIC, Veterans Pension, Survivor 
Benefits, Lifeline, Tribal. 15 GB internet service. 
Bonus offer: Android tablet FREE with one-
time $20 copay. Free shipping & handling. Call 
Maxsip Telecom today! 1-888-960-1792

Switch and save up to $250/year on your 
talk, text and data. No contract and no hidden 
fees. Unlimited talk and text with flexible data 
plans. Premium nationwide coverage. 100% 
U.S. based customer service. Limited time 
offer - get $50 off on any new account. Use 
code GIFT50. For more information, call 1-833-
651-2183

DISH Network. $64.99 for 190 Channels! 
Blazing Fast Internet, $19.99/mo. (where avail-
able.) Switch & Get a FREE $100 Visa Gift 
Card. FREE Voice Remote. FREE HD DVR. 
FREE Streaming on ALL Devices. Call today! 
1-855-404-4306

The Generac PWRcell, a solar plus battery 
storage system. SAVE money, reduce your 
reliance on the grid, prepare for power outages 
and power your home. Full installation services 
available. $0 Down Financing Option. Request 
a FREE, no obligation, quote today. Call 1-844-
928-2078

Moving Out of State? Licensed and insured, 
full-service, nationwide movers. Call now to get 
a free, instant price quote on your next move. 
844-707-9738

Are you a pet owner? Do you want to get up 
to 100% back on Vet Bills? Physicians Mutual 
Insurance Company has pet coverage that can 
help! Call 1-866-388-1067 to get a free quote 
or visit nmpa

Get DIRECTV for $84.99/mo for 24 months 
with CHOICE Package. NEW 2 YEAR PRICE 
GUARANTEE. First 3 months of HBO Max, 
Cinemax, Showtime, Starz and Epix included! 
Directv is #1 in Customer Satisfaction (JD 
Power & Assoc.) Some restrictions apply. Call 
1-888-758-5998

Connect to the best wireless home internet 
with EarthLink. Enjoy speeds from 5G and 4G 
LTE networks, no contracts, easy installation, 
and data plans up to 300 GB. Call 888-370-
1278

Donating your vehicle? Get more! Free 
Towing. Tax Deductible. Plus a $200 restau-
rant voucher and a 2-night/3-day hotel stay at 
one of 50 locations. Call Heritage for the Blind 
to donate your vehicle today - 1-877-613-0103

Saving just got easier with EarthLink 
Internet. Get up to $30 off your monthly bill and 
unlimited data with the Affordable Connectivity 
Program. Apply without credit checks. Call 844-
953-3006 now!

Eliminate gutter cleaning forever! LeafFilter, 
the most advanced debris-blocking gutter pro-
tection. Schedule a FREE LeafFilter estimate 
today. 20% off Entire Purchase. Plus 10% 
Senior & Military Discounts. Call 1-844-267-
7514

FREE high speed internet for those that 
qualify. Government program for recipients of 
select programs incl. Medicaid, SNAP, Housing 
Assistance, WIC, Veterans Pension, Survivor 
Benefits, Lifeline, Tribal. 15 GB internet service. 
Bonus offer: Android tablet FREE with one-
time $20 copay. Free shipping & handling. Call 
Maxsip Telecom today! 1-888-960-1792

ARE YOU BEHIND $10k OR MORE ON YOUR 
TAXES? Stop wage & bank levies, liens & 
audits, unfiled tax returns, payroll issues, & 
resolve tax debt FAST. Call 855-747-2799 
(Hours: Mon-Fri 7am-5pm PST)

VACATION PROPERTIES: 
ADVERTISE YOUR VACATION PROPERTY 
to more than 185,000 New Mexico newspaper 
readers. Your 25-word classified ad will appear 
in 23 newspapers around the state for only 
$158. Call this newspaper for more details or 
visit www.nmpress.org for more details.

legals
Highlight



Accepted: 03-13-2023







































































































3/30/23, 10:31 AM Roadway and Bridge Rehabilitation Project on Interstate 25 | NMDOT

https://www.dot.nm.gov/blog/2023/02/03/roadway-and-bridge-rehabilitation-project-on-interstate-25/ 1/5

Roadway and Bridge Rehabilitation
Project on Interstate 25
Feb 3, 2023 | District 4 Press Release, Press Release

Press Releases

U aa

aa
    

https://www.dot.nm.gov/blog/category/press-release/d4-press-release/
https://www.dot.nm.gov/blog/category/press-release/
https://www.dot.nm.gov/
https://www.facebook.com/NMDOT/
https://twitter.com/nmdot
https://www.linkedin.com/company/new-mexico-department-of-transportation/
https://www.instagram.com/newmexicodot/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC13egmCZryjtlQQjHLQVUSw


3/30/23, 10:31 AM Roadway and Bridge Rehabilitation Project on Interstate 25 | NMDOT

https://www.dot.nm.gov/blog/2023/02/03/roadway-and-bridge-rehabilitation-project-on-interstate-25/ 2/5

Drivers can expect minor delays traveling near

Rowe, NM

LAS VEGAS – The New Mexico Department of Transportation District Four of�ce in

cooperation with Fisher Sand & Gravel N.M. Inc. (Contractor) are excited to

announce the upcoming roadway and bridge rehabilitation project on Interstate 25

between milepost 305 and milepost 309 (Rowe).

This project will consist of a Cold In Place Recycling (CIR) process. Cold in-place

recycling (CIR) is a process that consists of milling and sizing reclaimed asphalt

pavement (RAP) and mixing in-place the RAP with recycling additive and new

aggregate (either in the milling machine’s cutting chamber or in a mix paver) to

produce a recycled cold mix, which is then re-laid and compacted as a new base

course.

Beginning Monday, March 6, 2023, drivers can expect various daytime lane closures

on both the north and southbound lanes as needed. The contractor’s hours of

operation will be from 7 a.m. to 6 p.m., Monday through Friday. This rehabilitation

project was awarded in the amount of $17.2 million and is expected to take 130

working days to complete, weather permitting.

The New Mexico Department of Transportation is committed to providing a safe

and ef�cient transportation system for the traveling public and appreciates your

cooperation during this project. For updated information, call 511 or go to

www.nmroads.com, the of�cial road advisory system for the State of New Mexico.

http://www.nmroads.com/


3/30/23, 10:31 AM Roadway and Bridge Rehabilitation Project on Interstate 25 | NMDOT

https://www.dot.nm.gov/blog/2023/02/03/roadway-and-bridge-rehabilitation-project-on-interstate-25/ 3/5

Click Here to download PDF

Return to Press Releases

https://www.dot.nm.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Roadway-and-Bridge-Rehabilitation-Project-on-Interstate-25-02.02.2023.pdf
https://www.dot.nm.gov/press-releases/

	Fisher Industries Meeting Prep final
	P&Z Agenda 4.6.2023
	Agenda 3.10.2022

	SM-03-15-2022 Minutes
	3.23.23Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting (2)
	Merged SMC PandZ Invoice - 349858 - 23030103 - Planning & Zoning Commission Reg Meeting – 73 Lines
	SMC PandZ Invoice - 349858 - 23030103 - Planning & Zoning Commission Reg Meeting – 73 Lines
	SMC PandZ Aff - 349858 - 23030103 - Planning & Zoning Commission Reg Meeting – 73 Lines
	3_24 Classifieds-3

	12
	1Agency Review - Fisher Industries-3.22.2023
	SKM_C360i23032211110

	SKM_C360i23033110210
	Temporary Office Ord
	Temp Use Permit

	Roadway and Bridge Rehabilitation Project on Interstate 25 _ NMDOT



